


From: Locke, Suzanne on behalf of CMTEDD FOI
To: TCCS FreedomOfInformation
Subject: FW: Freedom of Information request
Date: Monday, 21 March 2022 11:24:51 AM
Importance: High

OFFICIAL
Good morning team
Could you please advise if there has been any progress on this?
Thanks
Sue
Sue Locke I Freedom of Information Coordinator | Information Access Team
Phone: 02 6207 5583 | Email: CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au
Corporate | Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government
Level 5, 220 London Circuit, Canberra ACT 2601 | GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | act.gov.au

From: Locke, Suzanne On Behalf Of CMTEDD FOI
Sent: Tuesday, 8 March 2022 10:42 AM
To: TCCS_FreedomOfInformation <TCCS.FOI@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Freedom of Information request

OFFICIAL
Good morning team
Could you please advise if TCCS hold documents for this application. And if so, should this
request be fully or partially transferred to TCCS?
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

From: no-reply@act.gov.au <no-reply@act.gov.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 8 March 2022 9:59 AM
To: CMTEDD FOI <CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au>
Subject: Freedom of Information request
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the ACT Government. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Please find online enquiry details below. Please ensure this enquiry is responded to within
fourteen working days.

Your details

All fields are optional, however an email address OR full postal address must be
provided for us to process your request. An email address and telephone contact
number will assist us to contact you quickly if we need to discuss your request.
Title: Mr

First Name:

Last Name:

Business/Organisation: ACT Resident

Address:

Suburb:



Postcode:

State/Territory: ACT

Phone/mobile:

Email address:

Request for information

(Please provide as much detail as possible, for example subject matter and relevant
dates, and also provide details of documents that you are not interested in.)

Under the Freedom of
Information Act 2016 I
want to access the
following document/s
(*required field):

1. Documents relating to queries, decisions, assessments, advice (or
other documents) regarding the gum tree (Argyle apple) on the nature
strip of e between the period 01/01/2010 to
present day. 2. Documents relating to the criteria the ACT government
applies in assessing trees with regard to safety, health or any other
criteria in making assessments on when trees should be pruned,
removed or otherwise. 3. In meeting this FOI request please include
documents within 'Fix my Street'; correspondence with Minister or
MLA's offices; correspondence between Minister or MLA's offices and
ACT Government directorates; any documentation on this matter
between me  and the ACT Government, Ministers or MLAs.

I do not want to access
the following
documents in relation
to my request::

Thank you.
Freedom of Information Coordinator
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decision is detailed in the below statement of reasons.  
 
A list of records is in the schedule at Attachment A, and the relevant records are 
enclosed at Attachment B. 
 
Statement of Reasons 
In making my decision on disclosing government information, I must identify all 
relevant factors in schedule 1 and 2 of the FOI Act and determine, on balance, where 
the public interest lies. In reaching my access decision, I have taken the following into 
account: 

 
Factors favouring disclosure in the public interest (Schedule 2, Section 2.1) 

• Schedule 2.1(a)(i) - promote open discussion of public affairs and enhance 
the government’s accountability; and 

• Schedule 2.1(a)(iii) - inform the community of the government’s  
operations, including the  policies, guidelines and codes of conduct 
followed by the government in its dealings with members of the 
community. 
 

Factors favouring non-disclosure (Schedule 2, Section 2.2)  
• Schedule 2.2(a)(ii) - prejudice the protection of an individual’s right to 

privacy or any other right under the Human Rights Act 2004. 
 

In reviewing the information identified as relevant to your request, I have identified 
personal information belonging to third parties, including . I have 
considered that this information was provided to TCCS by you, in using a shared 
email address or through inclusion by you in emails to TCCS. While I find that 
schedule 2.2(a)(ii) is relevant, I find that it carries little weight as the information is 
already available to you and is unlikely to prejudice the prejudice the privacy of the 
third parties.  
 
Charges 
Pursuant to Freedom of Information (Fees) Determination 2018 no fee is applicable to 
this application as the total number of pages is within the fee-free threshold. 
 
Online publishing – disclosure log 
Under section 28 of the Act, TCCS maintains an online record of access applications 
called a disclosure log. Your original access application, my decision and documents 
will be published in the TCCS disclosure between 3 – 10 business days from the date 
of this decision.  
 
Your personal information, and the personal information of third parties, will not be 
published. You may view the TCCS’ disclosure log at 
https://www.cityservices.act.gov.au/about-us/freedom of information/disclosure-
log . 
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Ombudsman review 
My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 
3 of the Act. You have the right to seek an Ombudsman review of this outcome under 
section 73 of the Act within 20 working days from the day that my decision is 
published in TCCS’ disclosure log or a longer period allowed by the Ombudsman. 
 
If you wish to request a review of my decision, you may write to the Ombudsman at: 

The ACT Ombudsman 
GPO Box 442 
CANBERRA  ACT  2601 
Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au 

 
ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) review 
Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82 on an Ombudsman 
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. 
 
Further information may be obtained from ACAT at: 
 ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal 
 Level 4, 1 Moore Street 
 GPO Box 370 
 CANBERRA CITY  ACT  2601 
 Telephone: (02) 6207 1740 
 www.acat.act.gov.au 
 
If you have any queries concerning the directorate’s processing of your request, or 
would like further information, please contact the TCCS FOI team on (02) 6207 2987 
or email to tccs.foi@act.gov.au.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Meghan Oldfield 
Information Officer 
 

April 2022 
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Guidance note for assessment of public trees 

 

 
 

 
Background 
Transport Canberra and City Services (TCCS) is the ACT Government agency responsible for 
managing Canberra’s urban trees and employs a team of suitably skilled staff to carry out this 
task. 
 
Ensuring public safety is not compromised by the presence of trees within the urban area is a 
high priority for TCCS and decisions relating to the management of trees are based on meeting 
this objective. TCCS employs a team of skilled and experienced staff to undertake tree 
assessments and determine the appropriate management action. 
 

The Assessment Process 
Trees in the urban areas of Canberra are inspected in response to requests from the 
community, to maintain tree health and identify potential hazards that could pose a risk to 
public safety. 

Trees in high use areas such as district parks and shopping centres are regularly inspected to 
identify structural defects and/or other risk factors and address them in a timely manner. 

When a member of the public expresses concerns regarding public safety or the health of a tree 
on public land, a site visit is programmed and the subject tree or trees are assessed by qualified 
staff. 

The assessment considers safety concerns to persons, property and services. To do this, the 
assessor considers the potential target (person, property, etc) and the duration of occupancy of 
a target within the target zone. Other factors include whether a target can be moved or 
excluded (i.e. through the creation of a natural or built barrier/exclusion zone) from the target 
zone if required. 

A visual tree assessment is then carried out on the tree itself. Trees are inspected from the 
ground. Any observed or suspected health defects in trees are examined more closely through 
techniques such as an aerial inspection, sonic tomograph, sounding or probing to ascertain the 
likelihood of failure and the level of risk that is present. No invasive testing is carried out during 
the initial inspection. 

An assessment of a tree/s will include, but is not limited to, an assessment of: 

• the structure and stability of the tree/s; 

• the presence and extent of any factors/defects/wounds; 

• the identification of pests or diseases; 

• a determination of tree health (canopy density and distribution, presence of epicormic 
shoots, presence and density of dead branches within the canopy); 

• the habitat value or ecological benefit of the tree/s; 

• the heritage or cultural significance of the tree; and 

• the amenity value of the tree and its significance in the landscape. 
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Guidance note for assessment of public trees 

 

 
 

Assessment Tools 
In additional to their qualifications and experience in the field, assessors may utilise the 
following assessment tools, or a combination of them, when assessing public trees: 

• Visual Tree Assessment (VTA) 

• Quantified Tree Risk Assessment (QTRA) 

• Risk matrix: the likelihood and consequence of tree failure 

• International Society of Arboriculture -Tree Risk Assessment Qualification (TRAQ) 

• International Society of Arboriculture - Basic Tree Risk Assessment 

 

Urban Tree Maintenance 
Based on the outcomes of the inspection, a number of maintenance options can be 
programmed including: 

• No work required 

• More extensive assessment required (including aerial inspections, sonic tomograph etc) 

• Scheduled/increased monitoring of the tree 

• Tree pruning to maintain safe, healthy trees, to satisfy requirements for free pedestrian 
and vehicle movement and maintain sight lines and clearance for traffic lights and street 
signs 

• Tree removal 

• Lopping (only as a method of reducing risk to allow the retention of a tree for habitat 
purposes) 

TCCS takes a conservative approach to the removal of public trees. The management decision 
will take into account the assessment outcomes, the benefits of the tree/s to the urban 
environment and relevant government policy (including the ACT Climate Change Strategy, 
Canberra’s Living Infrastructure Plan, the Nature Conservation Act 2014, the Tree Protection Act 
2005 and the Urban Forest Strategy 2020-2045). 

Factors to be considered following an assessment of the tree are exposure to hazards, the 
extent of tree hazard, the environmental impact of the proposed maintenance, available 
resourcing and the appropriate prioritisation of works, and the cumulative impacts of 
management responses on our canopy cover. 

Monitoring 
Public trees that are identified as requiring more frequent monitoring will be noted and a 
monitoring schedule will be developed. The frequency and level of detail of future monitoring 
will be determined on a tree by tree basis depending on the issues identified in the initial 
inspection and the location of the tree. 
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Guidance note for assessment of public trees 

 

 
 

Pruning 
Pruning is carried out when required to enhance public safety and urban amenity and to 
improve or maintain tree health. Priority is given to trees in areas of high public use, such as 
streets, carparks, shopping centres and picnic areas. 

Pruning work on all our trees is restricted to the reduction and elimination of hazards. Pruning 
work can only be done by our employees or representatives and will be in line with approved, 
professionally accepted arboriculture practices such as outlined in the Australian Standard for 
Pruning of Amenity Trees (AS4373-2007) and the minimum industry standards for arboriculture 
and vegetation management workers. 

Qualified staff may carry out the following pruning activities: 

• Formative pruning of young trees in the first five years following planting. 

• Pruning to avoid interference with streetlights and other services. 

• Removal of lower branches to give clear pedestrian and traffic access as well as clear 
sight lines, particularly for vehicles entering and leaving driveways or approaching 
intersections. 

• Removal of lower branches on main roads and major streets. 

• Removal of large deadwood, or diseased, cracked, hollow or otherwise unsound wood. 

 

Root pruning is to be avoided and only carried out when deemed necessary.  The need for root 
pruning will be assessed on a case by case basis in relation to the structural root zone of the 
tree and species tolerance to root disturbance. 

 

Removal 
TCCS adopt a conservative policy towards the removal of trees on public land. 

Trees are considered for removal on a case-by-case basis following an inspection by qualified 
staff when: 

• they are dead (and provide no habitat or ecological benefit), damaged or in irreversible 
decline 

• they constitute a traffic hazard/other identifiable hazard to public safety which cannot 
be corrected by pruning 

• they are interfering with above or below-ground services such as power lines or water 
pipes and mitigating measures are ineffective 

• the tree is an unsuitable species for where it is planted, for example, poplars and 
willows near stormwater lines 

• they are part of a dense planting which requires thinning to promote the health of the 
remaining tree. 

• they were designated as temporary in the original landscape design and have reached 
the end of their intended life span. 
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Guidance note for assessment of public trees 

 

 
 

 
Trees are not removed due to: 

• householder preference for no street tree or for a different species 

• appearance (unless this is related to very poor tree health) 

• solar access 

• concerns about leaf litter, twigs, fruit or seed material, or droppings from wildlife 

• insects or animals, including bees and possums 

• release of pollen, i.e. allergies or asthma 

• householder desire to improve or allow a view 

• tree roots protruding above the ground or competing with lawns or garden beds. 

If it is necessary to remove a living tree from a nature strip, regardless of whether the tree was 
planted by the ACT Government or the householder, the resident will be notified. Consultation 
will be more extensive where a group of trees are to be removed. Where the site and 
surrounding services allow, a tree of an appropriate species will be replanted in a similar 
location. 

 

Habitat retention 
Mature native trees which are dead, damaged or in irreversible decline may be pruned and 
retained in the landscape where they: 

• provide habitat for wildlife such as through hollows 

• are a remnant of the original vegetation of the ACT, or have regenerated from one 

• are in a location where they do not constitute an identifiable hazard to public safety. 

Habitat trees are created by pruning the main branches to leave a 'totem' with exposed hollows 
to provide habitat for birds and animals. In certain cases, artificial hollows and/or nest boxes 
may be added to enhance habitat. 
 

Mitigating measure 
Mitigating measures can also be implemented in response to the assessment of the tree/s. 
These may include, but are not limited to: 

• Establishment of exclusion zones under the canopy of trees, for example, landscaping 
treatments, physical barriers, fencing or the erection of signage in the area. 

• Physically removing a target from the target zone, for example, moving a seat or 
redirecting a path or road. 

• Upgrades or repairs to infrastructure, for example, aged/damaged underground pipes. 

• Root pruning and root barriers 




